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P-ROCEEDI-NGS
9:33 a.m

BZA CHAI R HI LL: Good norni ng | adi es and gent | enen.
The Board of Zoning Adjustnent today's public hearing is
6/ 5/ 2024 wll please cone to order. M nane is Fred HII,
chairman of the D strict of Colunbia Board of Zoning
Adjustnent. Joining ne today are Vice-Chairs Lorna and John,
Carl Bl ake and Chri shaun Sm th, Zoni ng Conm ssioners Ant hony
Hood, Tammy Stidham and Rob Ml er.

Today's neeting and hearing agenda are avail abl e
at the Ofice of Zoning's website, please be advised this
proceedi ng i s being recorded by a court reporter, and is al so
webcast live via Whbex and YouTube Live. The video and
webcast will be available on the Ofice of Zoning's website
after today's hearing. Accordingly, everyone who 1is
| i stening on Webex or a tel ephone will be nuted during the
heari ng.

Al so pl ease be advised in the neeting we do not
take any public testinony at our decision neeting session.

I f you're experiencing difficulty accessi ng Webex or through

t el ephone call in, then please call our OZ hotline nunber at
2027275471 to receive Wbex log in or call in instructions.
At the conclusion of the decision neeting session, | shall,

in consultation with the Ofice of Zoning, determn ne whet her
a full or summary order nay be issued.
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A full order is required when the decision it
contains is adverse to a party, including an affected ANC.
A full order may also be needed if the board' s decision
differs from the Ofice of Planning's recomendation.
Al t hough the board favors the use of sunmary orders whenever
possi bl e, an applicant may not request the board to issue
such an order.

In today's hearing session, everyone who isS
| i stening on Webex or by tel ephone will be nmuted during the
heari ng, and only persons who have signed up to participate
or testify will be unnmuted at the appropriate tine. Please
state your nanme and honme address before providing oral
testinmony or your presentation. Oral presentation should be
limted to a sunmary of your nost inportant points.

When you have fi ni shed speaki ng, pl ease nute your
audi o so that your mcrophone is no | onger picking up sound
or background noi se. Once again, if you're experiencing
difficult accessing Wbex, or with your telephone call in,
or if you have forgotten to sign up 24 hours prior to this
heari ng, then please call our OQZ hotline nunber at 2027275471
to sign up to testify and to receive Webex log in or call in
i nstructi ons.

Al'l persons planning to testify either in favor
or opposition should have signed up in advance, they'll be
called by nane to testify. |If this is an appeal, only the
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parties are allowed to testify. By signing up to testify,
all participants conplete the oath or affirmati on as required
by Subtitle Y 408.7.

Requests to enter evidence at the tine of an
online virtual hearing, witten testinony, or additiona
supporting docunents other than |ive video, which may not be
presented as part of the testinony, nmay be all owed pursuant
to Subtitle Y 103.13 providing that the persons neking the
request to enter an exhibit explain A how the proposed
exhibit is relevant, B, the good cause that justifies
allowing the exhibit into the record, including the
expl anation of why the requester did not file the exhibit
prior to the hearing pursuant to Y 206, and how t he proposed
exhi bit woul d not unreasonably prejudice any parties.

The order of procedures for special exception and
variances are pursuant to Y 409. At the conclusion of each
case, an individual who is unable to testify because of
technical issues may file a request for leave to file a
witten version of the planned testinmony to the record within

24 hours foll ow ng the concl usion of public testinony and the

heari ng.

| f additional witten testinony is accepted then
parties will be allowed a reasonable tine to respond as
determ ned by the board. The board will then make its

decision at its next neeting session, but no earlier than 48
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hours after the hearing. Moreover the board nmay request
additional specific information to conplete the record. The
board and the staff will specify at the end of the hearing
exactly what is expected, and the date a person nust submt
the evidence to the Ofice of Zoning.

No other information shall be accepted by the
boar d. Finally, District of Colunbia Adm nistrative
Procedures Act requires that the public hearing on each case
be held in the open before the public. However, pursuant to
Section 405(b) and 406 of that act, the board may, consi stent
withits rules and procedures, and the act, enter into cl osed
neeting on a case for purpose of receiving | egal counsel on
a case pursuant to D.C. Oficial Code Section 2-575(b)(iv).

And or deliberate on a case pursuant to D.C
Oficial Code Section 2-575(b)(xiii), but only after
provi ding the said public notice to the case energency cl osed
neeting after taking a roll call vote. Madam Secretary, do
we have any prelimnary matters?

VMEMBER NEHLERT: Good norning nenbers of the
board. Today there are a couple schedul e changes, Appeal
Number 21007, the 4865 MArthur Landlord, LLC., has been
postponed to July 31st, 2024. And Appeal Nunber 21008 of
Gale H Arnold for the Gale H Arnold Local Trust and manager
of Lydia Denney Palnmer D.C., LLC. has been postponed to
Sept enber 25t h, 2024.
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In ternms of late filings, the chairman has
reviewed and granted waivers to allow late filings into the
applicabl e case record pursuant to Subtitle Y Section 206. 7,
and Section 103.13. Any other late filings during the course
of today's hearing should be presented before the board by
the applicant, parties, or other wtnesses after the case is
called. Any other prelimnary matters will be noted when the

case is called today.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Thank vyou. Good norning
everybody. | have a commtnent at 10:30, and so Vice-Chair
John has agreed to take over for ne while | have that
commitnent, and in the nmeantine we will go ahead and nove

t hrough as the agenda was posted. And Madam Secretary, you
can call our first case.

MEMBER MEHLERT: The first case is in the board's
nmeeting session, it's Application Nunber 21037 of Nat hani el
and Patricia Robb. This is an application pursuant to
Subtitle X Section 901.2, wth special exceptions under
Subtitle E Section 5201 to all ow occupancy requirenents of
Subtitle E Section 210.1, and the rear yard requirenents of
Subtitle E Section 207. 1.

This project is to construct a rear deck addition
to an existing three story attached buil ding using the -- | ot
it is located in the RF1 zone at 1361 Oak Street Northwest,
Square 2835, Lot 73. This was |last heard on May 22nd, the
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board requested revised plans from the applicant, and any
response fromthe ANC. Participating are Chairman HIl, M.
Bl ake, M. Smth, and Chai rman Hood.

I will also note there are two prelimnary
matters. There is a request to reopen the record from Dani el
Hayes to allow additional testinony, and there is also a
request to postpone the board's decision fromANC 1A, which
was submtted by the Vice-Chair Jereny Shernman.

BZA CHAI R HI LL: Ckay. | guess, Chairnman Hood,
you're on this one, correct?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Yes, | am M. Chairman, and if
it's okay I'd like to keep ny -- I"'moutside, so | can't see
nyself on the screen, so if you could just bear with ne
t oday, thank you.

BZA CHAIR H LL: O course, of course, thank you.
So, I'malittle bit uncertain as howto proceed, and | wll,
| guess go around the table to hear what the board's thoughts
are. | nean, this case has gone on for quite sone tine. W
have taken a | ot of testinony, we have heard froma |ot of
different people, and | think had an opportunity to go over
t he anal ysis of the case.

Sonme of the things that have cone up in the case
are things that are probably outside of the board's purview.
This is going us to whether or not the honme is being used in
the way that is allowed by zoning, nmeaning there's not an
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extra unit being used there, that's sonething that really is
nore of a conpliance issue that the ANC, or neighbors, or
whonever would | et the Departnent of Buil dings know about,
and they would enforce that.

That's not sonething, we're not enforcenent. So,
we're then to take a | ook at the issues that are the zoning
I ssues that we're supposed to look at, which in this
particular case is kind of light, air, privacy, and how the
request is affecting those itens. | think in terns of we
have heard fromthe Ofice of Planning, and the O fice of
Pl anni ng had given us their analysis, and their anal ysis was
that they have net the criteria for us to grant this
particular relief.

| have always had a little bit of difficulty with
this, just because | think that decks are really |l arge, and
| think there's a way that they could have possibly been
designed to be a little bit different, but the issues that
| was concerned about primarily were privacy i ssues. And so,
the three foot privacy screening that they have around the
perimeter of the deck on the third floor, | think would
adequately solve sonme of the issues that | had with it
concerning the privacy.

| woul d make one note that on their draw ng, and
their drawings by the way, | appreciate the architect, but
t hey' ve al ways confused ne because on one side you can see
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the el evator shaft, and on the other side you can't see the
el evator shaft, so | always got confused. But regardl ess,
what | want to point out for if this goes forward, is that
the privacy screening that they have, there's kind of |ike
a gap in that before where the stairwell is.

And | woul d assune that that gap i s actual | y going
to be a gap, so | do not think that they need to put a get
there or sonething, the architect just didn't -- he col ored
all the way across, there's going to be a gap right there,
an opening that | would inagine is going to be there, and |

woul d be finewith that. | just wanted to be clear that it's
not a straight across thing, right?

So, those are my overall thoughts. Then now we
have a request fromthe ANC to postpone so that they can take
a look at this again. | don't necessarily think they're
goi ng to have anything newto share with us, but | think that
if the board were interested in doing that then we could
post pone, | think they said the 12th is when they were goi ng
totry to do it again, June 12th, which isn't that far away.

And then this other person that wanted to put
sonmething into the record, |I nean, | would be denying that
because the person could have talked at any of the other
heari ngs, and also then if we did postpone this until after
the ANC hearing, that person could testify at that ANC
hearing. And so, basically what's on the table right nowis
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whet her you all think we shoul d postpone this, and |' m goi ng
to go around the table and hear what you all think. Can |
hear fromyou, M. Smth?

MEMBER SM TH: | agree wth nost of what
everything that you just stated regarding this particular
case. So, | nean what's before us is an open air deck, and
based on the special exception criteria, as you stated, what
we're tasked with reviewwng with this particular case is
light, air, privacy. This is an open air deck, so there wl|l
not be, as stated by the Ofice of Planning within their
report, there will not be any undue inpacts as it relates to
| ight and air access in the adjacent properties.

But | do recognize that this is, by typical
standards that we | ook at, or typical sizes of decks that we
| ook at, this is on the larger side part of the decks, but
that in and of itself does not nean that it's undue. The
Ofice of Planning is on the record as stating that there are
a nunber of other decks within the square, matter of fact,
nost of those are enclosed, | believe it was stated.

And this would so happen to be an open air deck.
The reason for the size of this deck is because nore of a
function of the elevator. There is a five foot nechani cal
pent house that extends out from the rear, a fairly large
mechani cal pent house extends out fromthe rear of the hone
here, and standard size for an elevator. |In order to place
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a deck on the rear of this building, to cover the entire rear
of the building you have to nmaintain a five foot egress
wal kway to neet buil di ng code standards.

So, that does kind of dictate the size of the
deck, and howfar it's comng out. But | do not believe that
because it's an open air deck, the way it's designed, that
it would be -- would have an undue hardshi p on the adjacent
property owners. One of the primary concerns that was rai sed
by the nei ghborhood residents relate to privacy. And the
applicant has agreed to place a privacy screen around the
upper deck to mtigate sone of the inpacts as it relates to
privacy on the adjacent property owners.

So, | believe that the applicant, the Ofice of

Pl anni ng has al ways been in support of this application, it's
found that it has net the criteria for us to approve it, and
| do believe that we can address one of the primary concerns
t hat rai sed by the nei ghborhood as it relates to privacy with
that privacy screening, and to condition it as such for it
to be constructed.

The other concern that was raised, | believe by
t he nei ghbor hood, was the potentiality or concern that the
third floor would be rented out as another unit. That is
probably beyond the scope of this, of our board. The
applicant has submtted interior plans, | believe, that show
the layout of the third floor. And as it's designed, it's
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13

not designed exclusively to operate as a stand alone
dwel I'i ng.

But there are avenues that the adjacent property
owners, the ANC can pursue if they believe that this space
Is being rented out for a third dwelling, they can file a
conplaint. So, | would just note if the property owner is
here, you're on notice. This application, even if this is
approved, the mcroscope wll remain on you. So, if you are
renting this out as a third, or attenpt to rent this out as
athirdunit, I"'msure you wll get conplaints.

O you will get letters in the mail stating for
you to cease and desist renting this third floor space as a
rental unit. But again, that's not before the board today.
So, | do believe they've net the burden of proof for us to
grant the special exception with the condition of the privacy
screeni ng, and woul d support the application.

BZA CHAIR HILL: And what do you think about the
post ponenent, M. Smith?

MEMBER SM TH: | agree with you, Chairman H I,
| do not believe that we wll get any additional new
i nformati on regarding fromthe ANC by postponing it. This
is within the record, the privacy screening is within the
record today, and they're also on record as agreeing to
construct the privacy screening in the pervious hearing. So,
the ANC s opposition is duly noted, and | think I'm prepared
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to nove forward.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Ckay. And M. Smth, |
appreciate, I'mnot trying to put you on the spot on this
one, I"'mkind of on the fence still, as to whether or not to

push this back. Like again, it would be pushed back only a
coupl e of weeks, but | don't really -- I"'mwaiting to see if
anybody on the board here thinks we should push it back. And
we didn't get actually a report fromthe ANC.

We didn't get anything to necessarily give great
wei ght to, but again, that's whatever. M. Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: Good norning, M. Chair, thank you
very much. | do believe the record is full. The ANC 1A did
provide us with a report, they just chose not to take a
position, and they did not provide issues and concerns for
us to give great weight to. But we have had several
additional filings since that time fromthe SMD, and numer ous
| etters which he enclosed to us as well, reflecting all the
i ssues and concerns of the neighbors.

So, | do believe we've had a pretty good
understanding of the issues and concerns that have been
rai sed. W tal ked about, obviously the things that may not
be germane to the board, or within the board' s purview, and
nore of a DOB enforcenent issue, which would be the use of
the property. | would also add in that context they have
indicated that it is a flat, it's registered as a flat, and
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they have attested they would use it as a flat.

And Board Menber Smth quite eloquently talked
about how they could approach -- the neighborhood wll be
wat ching clearly, and there is sone notice there for them
| think that the other issue that cane up was sone
measur enent issues, which were addressed, and we had i nput
fromthe ZA with regard to how that should be done, and it
was adj usted, anended, and again, it fit within the context
of our approval.

And we were able to continue that discussion, so
that was another issue that was raised. The other issues
that were raised with regard to light, and air, and privacy
were pretty clearly articulated with those nunmerous |letters.
And | think that al so there was an i ssue about communi cati on
with the coormunity. So, | do believe that we've had anple
i nformati on fromthe community, so we have a had a chance to
wei gh and view the facts of the case.

And we're in a position, certainly I amin a
position to vote on this today wi thout the additional input,
and post ponenent. It would be nice to have sonething to give
great weight to fromthe ANC, however we have had a | ot of
information at this point fromthe -- teamas to i ssues and
concer ns.

BZA CHAIR HILL: kay, Chairnman Hood?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: | apologize if there's sone
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additional noise in the background, but | wll say that |
agree with everything that |1've heard ny coll eagues say. |
t hi nk we have hashed this out quite a bit, especially dealing
wth the privacy issue, | think that has been pretty mnuch
mtigated. It may not have been resolved conpletely, but I
al ways err on the side of caution. | believe that | always
want to hear fromthe comunity, and they asked us for one
nore week.

And | knowit seens like l'min the mnority, |I'm
actually ready to nove forward, but | would like to err on
the side of caution, but if the majority today of the board
menbers decide to nove forward, | will nove forward, but |'m
al ways cautious, and | will leave it at that. So, thank you,
M. Chairman.

BZA CHAIR H LL: That's fine. | al so, Chairman
Hood, I'mglad that you're on the board today, |I'mfine, it
only takes one really, and I have no problem | don't think
any of our fellow board nenbers al so have any issues. So
then if that were the case, we would grant the postponenent
that's being requested by the ANC. That neans they woul d
t hen have an opportunity to neet on the 12th, which is a week
fromtoday, and then they'd have a chance to di scuss what ever
t hey want to discuss.

And then | guess we could have a filing fromthem
Madam Secretary, | guess | can ask the ANC whenever, but |
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mean if the ANC can at | east give us sonething by the 17th,
COB, okay?
MEMBER MEHLERT: So, you don't have a hearing on

June 19th, just so you know.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Yeah, yeah. kay, so they can
give it to us then a week later, which is -- well, hold on,
give ne a second. Yeah, that's fine. Then why don't we ask

them for their filing a week later, which would be on the
19t h, okay? And then we woul d ask for any responses fromthe
parties by the 21st, which is two days | ater, and then we can
come back for a decision on the 26th, okay?

And as far as that prelimnary natter to reopen
the record, I'mgoing to deny that request, because again,
| think that this individual could have spoken at an earlier
hearing with us, and also now if that person wants to, they
can speak at the ANC neeting on the 12th. So, we're going
to be back here for a decision on 6/26/24, okay? And just
so | know, M. Blake, and M. Snmith, you guys are here on
that day, right? On the 26th, as far as you know?

MEMBER SM TH:  Yes.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Okay, because | will be voting
absent ee. kay, great. Al right, Chairman Hood, is that
it for you today?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: That's it for me, thank you. You
have a great day.
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BZA CHAIR H LL: All right, enjoy your day.

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Al right, you all do the sane.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Bye bye.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter went of f the
record at 9:56 a.m and resuned at 10:17 a.m)

BZA CHAI R HI LL: Just so everyone knows, Vice-
Chai r John has been ki nd enough to agree to hel p ne take care
of a business call, and so the order that | have us remaining
Is 21131 is the next one that | had, 17952A is the next one
that | had, 21123 is the next one that | had, 20768, and
20769. And then | woul d hope to return.

MEMBER MEHLERT: | f coul d repeat those pl ease, M.
Chai r man.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Sure, sure, of course. The ones

that Vice-Chair John was kind enough to cover for ne are

21131, 17952A

MEMBER MEHLERT: | think you said 211237

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Yeah, the next one, so Ms. John,
t he next one after that is 21123, and the next one after that
is 20768, and 20769.

MEMBER MEHLERT: kay, so 21119, and 20823, you
will be back for that, as well as the appeal ?

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Yeah, yeah. So, I'll be back for
21119, and then I'll be back for 20823A, and then |'l| be
back for 21082.
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MEMBER MEHLERT: Ckay.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay.

MEMBER MEHLERT: Thank you.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Thank you. All right, you all
have a good little bit of time, and | wll see you back when
| see you back. Bye bye.

MEMBER MEHLERT: Thank you. Vice-Chair John, just
| et me know when you're ready to call the next case, and |
bel i eve Comm ssioner MIller is joining us.

BZA VICE CHAIR JOHN: Ckay, great. Wl cone,
Commi ssioner MIler. So, yes, please go ahead and call the
next case, which | think is 21131.

MEMBER MEHLERT: Yes, this is in the board's
neeting session, this is an expedited review Application
Nunmber 21131 of Aaron Flyer, this is a self certified
application pursuant to Subtitle X Section 901.2 for a
speci al exception under Subtitle E Section 5201, the | ot
occupancy requirenents of Subtitle E Section 210.1, this is
to construct a rear addition to an existing two story
attached principal dwelling.

Project is located in the RF1 zone at 430 10th
Street Northeast, Square 937, Lot 67.

BZA VICE CHAIR JOHN. Ckay, thank you, ['ll go
ahead and start the discussion. So, as the secretary just
noted this is a self certified application for |ot occupancy
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relief in the RF1 zone. And this is not a significant
| nprovenent, it's a rear addition to an existing two story
attached principal dwelling, and |I'm going to give great
weight to OP's recommendation and analysis. And | notice
that, | don't believe we have -- yes, the ANC al so supports
the relief.

We have several persons in the nei ghborhood who
are in support. The existing ot occupancy is 61.75 percent,
and the applicant is seeking an increase to 68.34 percent
where 60 percent is permtted. So, in terns of privacy, and
light, and air concerns, | don't believe that this mnor
addi ti on should create any substanti al adverse i npact on t he
nei ghborhood. And |I'I1 ask ny coll eagues if they wi sh to add
anything to this comment. M. Snith?

MEMBER SM TH: | have nothing to add, | agree with
your assessnent of this particular case, it seens fairly
straight forward, and its inpacts would not be undue, so |
woul d support the application as well, giving OP's staff
report great weight.

BZA VICE CHAIR JOHN: Thank you. M. Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: Thank you, Vice-Chair, |I'm in
support of the application. | believe the applicant has mnet
t he burden of proof, | would also note the | etters of support
from the adjacent nenbers, as well as the capital
restoration, | would be voting in favor of the application.
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BZA VICE CHAIR JOHN: Thank you. Comm ssi oner
Mller?

ZC VICE CHAIR M LLER: Thank you, Vice-Chair, |
agree wth your analysis, and concur wth you, and ny
col l eagues on this issue, that the applicant has net the
standard of review for the relief being requested, and I'm
prepared to support the application. Thank you.

BZA VI CE CHAI R JOHN: Thank you. So, I'll make
a nmotion then to approve Application Nunber 21131 as

captioned and read by the secretary, and ask for a second.

M. Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: Second.

BZA VI CE CHAI R JOHN: Thank you. Madam Secret ary,
will you take the roll call?

VMEMBER NEHLERT: Pl ease respond to the vice-
chair's notion to approve the application. Vice-Chair John?

BZA VI CE CHAIR JOHN:  Yes.

MEMBER MEHLERT: M. Snith?

MEMBER SM TH:  Yes.

MEMBER MEHLERT: M. Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: Yes.

MEMBER MEHLERT: And Conmi ssioner MIller? Staff
will record the vote as four, to zero, to one to approve
Application Nunber 21131 on the notion made by Vice-Chair

John, and seconded by M. Blake with one board nenber not
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participating.

BZA VICE CHAIR JOHN: Thank you. So, let's nove
to the next case, which | believe is 17952A?

MEMBER MEHLERT: Yes, the next application in the
board's neeting session is Application Nunber 17952A of
Lincoln Leibner. This is a request pursuant to Subtitle Y
Section 703 for a nodification of consequence of plans
approved by the order issued on August 3rd, 2009 in
Appl i cation Nunber 17952 to all ow a second story addition to
an existing one story accessory structure.

Again, this is to construct a second story
addition with a catwalk to an existing one story accessory
structure in the rear yard of an existing two story attached
principal dwelling located in the RF1 zone at 1332 T Street
Nor t hwest, Square 238, Lot 79.

BZA VICE CHAIR JOHN:. Thank you. So, there was
a previous order in this case where the | ot occupancy was not
accurately determ ned, and t here has been a reeval uati on, and
the ZA now is in agreenent that the proposed -- that the
exi sting |l ot occupancy is properly cal cul ated at 58 percent.
And so the applicant is seeking to increase this to 61
percent, which is under the ZR16 regul ations allowable by
speci al exception.

The set back requirenment was al so different inthe
previ ous regul ati ons, they have been rel axed currently, and
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the new provisions require a 7.5 mninmm setback. In this
case the applicant requires -- I'msorry, the applicant is
proposi ng ei ght feet where eight feet is existing. So, |I'm
not quite sure that the applicant -- the 61 percent is wthin

the area where the zoning adm nistrator could, wthin his
di scretion, grant this request.

But it is a self certified application, and so
unless there is no reason to approve the self certified
application, the board would ordinarily go ahead and grant
relief out of an abundance of caution. So, | think that, as
| have said before, the application neets the criteria under
the existing regul ations. If we were to analyze this in
terms of whether or not there's any adverse inpact, | would
think that there is no adverse inpact from this snall
addi ti on.

And in terns of privacy, and light, and air, this
would have already been determined in the previous
application, and it really is no nmmjor change in this
application. So, I'"'min support of the application, and I
would like to hear fromny other board nenbers. M. Smth,
woul d you like to start?

MEMBER SM TH: Vi ce-Chair John, | have nothing to
add, | agree with your assessnent on this particul ar case,
and | believe that they have net the burden of proof for us
to grant themthis release. So, with that | will support the
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application.

BZA VICE CHAIR JOHN: Thank you. Board Menber
Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: | would nmention the stated
consequence, | would al so point out the comments nmade by the
O fice of Planning as to the i npact on nei ghboring properties
as to the amount of |ight avail abl e shoul d not substantially
change as a result of nodification. The increase in height
fromthe previously approved design would still be wthin the
ri ght range, and the new desi gn woul d i ncrease the degree of
privacy to the neighbors by renoving the second floor
terrace.

So, given those factors, and al so the support of
t he ANC 1B, and t he reconmendati on of the O fice of Planning,
| would be in support of the application.

BZA VI CE CHAI R JOHN: Thank you, M. Bl ake. |

woul d al so add that HPRB is in support of the application.

kay, so with that | will nake -- |'msorry.

ZC VICE CHAIR MLLER: | would just confer with
ny col | eagues.

BZA VICE CHAIR JOHN: Thank you, Comm ssioner
MIller, I did not intend to exclude you, | caught it just as
soon as | started, but thank you. So, with that I w Il make
a notion to approve Application Nunmber 17952A as capti oned

and read by the secretary, and ask for a second, M. Bl ake.
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|"'msorry, | didn't hear you.

MEMBER BLAKE: Second.

BZA VI CE CHAI R JOHN:  Thank you. Madam Secretary,
woul d you pl ease take a roll call?

MEMBER WNMEHLERT: Pl ease respond to the vice-

chair's notion to approve the application. Vice-Chair John?

BZA VI CE CHAI R JOHN:  Yes.

MEMBER MEHLERT: M. Snith?

MEMBER SM TH:  Yes.

MEMBER MEHLERT: M. Bl ake?

MEMBER BLAKE: Yes.

MEMBER MEHLERT: And Conmi ssioner MIller? Staff
will record the vote as four, to zero, to one to approve
Application 17952A fromthe notion nmade by Vi ce-Chair John,

and seconded by M. Blake wth one board nenber not

participating.

BZA VI CE CHAIR JOHN: Thank you, Ms. Mehlert. So,
as | understand it, we're now noving back to the hearing
cal endar ?

MEMBER MEHLERT:  Yes.

BZA VI CE CHAI R JOHN: kay, so let's take a 15
m nute break, is that too nuch, or too little? Let's return
at 10: 45 then.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter went of f the
record at 10:31 a.m)
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